
\\ 

 
DATE: January 23, 2024 
TIME: 5:00 P.M. 
LOCATION: City Hall (4621 Tolt Avenue) 
 
JOIN ONLINE (MICROSOFT TEAMS) 
 

• Meeting ID: 216 386 824 316  
• Passcode: twfG98 

 
1) CALL TO ORDER: Chair Ron Lundeen 

 
2) ROLL CALL: Ashlyn Farnworth 
 
3) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

a) November 14, 2023 
 

5) CITIZEN COMMENT & REQUESTS: Comments may be submitted in advance by 
writing or e-mailing clerk@carnationwa.gov, or made in person, or by telephone or 
computer connection at the time of the meeting. Individual comments shall be 
limited to three minutes. 
 

6) PRESENTATIONS:  
a) ADU 

 
7) NEW BUSINESS: 

a) New Board member Update 
 

8) OLD BUSINESS 
a) River’s Edge Park  
b) Triangle Activation  
c) Graffiti Board 

CARNATION PLANNING AND PARKS BOARD AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

 
Chair Ron Lundeen, Vivian Anschell, Daniel Enciso,  

Caroline Habell, Wayne Wallace 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NmM5NzI0ZWItNDlmMi00NzU0LTlkNzgtYTM0YzQyNzgxZWM5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22c80bb656-e712-44c8-b0bc-6c84e7f73025%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2234f7103f-82e6-4d5b-a6a9-121d9e14ce11%22%7d
mailto:clerk@carnationwa.gov


  

– 2 – 

d) Comp Plan Open House 
e) Tree Code Update 

 
9) FUTURE AGENDAS: 

a) Regular Meeting: February 27, 2024 
i) Onboarding Meeting 
 

10)  ADJOURNMENT: Chair Ron Lundeen 

 



   
 

   
 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER – Ron Lundeen 
• At: 5:06 PM 
 

2. ROLL CALL – Ashlyn Farnworth 
Present: Co-Chair Ron Lundeen, Caroline Habell, Daniel Enciso, Vivian 
Anschell, and Wayne Wallace 
Not Present: Co-Chair Jessica Merizan, Brianna Prokopec 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MOTION BY CO-CHAIR LUNDEEN SECOND BY BOARD MEMBER HABELL 
TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. MOTION PASSED (5-0). 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
MOTION BY CO-CHAIR LUNDEEN SECOND BY BOARD MEMBER HABELL 
TO APPROVE THE OCTOBER 24TH REGULAR MEETING MINUTES. 
MOTION PASSED (5-0). 
 

5. CITIZEN COMMENT & REQUESTS: Comments may be submitted in advance 
by writing or e-mailing clerk@carnationwa.gov, or made in person, or by 
telephone or computer connection at the time of the meeting. Individual 
comments shall be limited to three minutes. 

• No one provided public comment. 

 
6. PRESENTATIONS: 

• No presentations scheduled. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS: 
• Graffiti Board 

o CED Principal Ender will check in with City of Duvall 
o Recommendation: 

 Public Works Crew Opinion 
• Comp Plan Open House: December 12th, 6-8 pm 

CARNATION PLANNING AND PARKS BOARD AGENDA 
Regular Meeting Minutes 11-14-23 

 
Co-Chair Ron Lundeen, Co-Chair Jessica Merizan, Vivian Anschell,  
Daniel Enciso, Caroline Habell, Brianna Prokopec, Wayne Wallace 



– 2 – 

• Joint Council & Planning and Parks Meeting Structure on January 9, 
2024 

o CED Principal Ender will send invite. 
• RFP: Youth Recreational Programming 

 
8. OLD BUSINESS: 

• River’s Edge Park Options 
o Board Recommendations: 

 Above ground play surface 
 Buffer trees in Phase 1 
 Replace spiral climber with a solar climber 
 Replace Cozy Cocoon 
 Add composite bench 
 Attach shade sails to play equipment 

• Triangle Activation Update 
 

9. FUTURE AGENDAS: 
• Regular Meeting: January 23rd, 2024 

 
10.  ADJOURNMENT – Ron Lundeen 

• At: 7:00 PM 



ADUs

C I T Y  O F  C A R N A T I O N  



What is an ADU?

• A n acces s ory  dwel l ing  un i t  (A DU)  i s  a  s mal l ,  

s e l f - conta ined res ident ia l  un i t  lo cated  o n  the  

s ame lo t  as  an  ex i s t ing  s ing le - fami ly  ho me.

• A n A DU has  a l l  the  bas i c  fac i l i t ies  needed fo r  

day- to -day  l i v ing  independent  o f  the  main  

ho me,  s uch  as  a  k i tchen,  s leeping  area ,  and a  

bathro o m.  A s  the  term "acces s ory"  impl ies ,  

A DUs  are  genera l l y  def ined to  be  s mal ler  in  s i ze  

and pro minence  than the  main  res idence  o n  the  

lo t .  

• A DUs  are  s o met imes  ca l led  “mo ther- in- law 

apar tments ”,  “granny  f lats ”,  “DA DUs ”  “backyard  

co ttages”  o r  “accessory  apar tments  o r  un i ts”

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 2



ADU Types

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 3



ADUs in Washington State: Required Code Changes

4

S t a t e  l a w  ( R C W  3 6 . 7 0 A . 6 8 0 a n d 3 6 . 7 0 A . 6 8 1 )  r e q u i r e s  a l l  l o c a l  g o v e r n m e n t s  p l a n n i n g  u n d e r  t h e  G r o w t h  M a n a g e m e n t  A c t  ( G M A ) ,  r e g a r d l e s s  o f  

p o p u l a t i o n  a n d  i n c l u d i n g  c o u n t i e s  ( u n i n c o r p o r a t e d  u r b a n  g r o w t h  a r e a s )  a s  w e l l  a s  c i t i e s ,  t o  r e v i s e  t h e i r  r e g u l a t i o n s  a s  n e e d e d  t o  c o n f o r m ,  

w i t h i n  s i x  m o n t h s  a f t e r  t h e i r  p e r i o d i c  u p d a t e  d u e  d a t e  ( J u n e  2 0 2 5 ) ,  w i t h  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  r e q u i r e m e n t s .  T h e  C i t y  o f  C a r n a t i o n  i s  w o r k i n g  o n  

t h e s e  c o d e  u p d a t e s .

•M i n i m u m  n u m b e r  o f  A D U s  p e r  l o t :  T w o  A D U s  p e r  l o t  m u s t  b e  a l l o w e d  i n  a l l  G M A  u r b a n  g r o w t h  a r e a s ,  i n  a d d i t i o n  t o  t h e  p r i n c i p a l  u n i t ,  f o r  l o t s  

t h a t  m e e t  t h e  m i n i m u m  l o t  s i z e  r e q u i r e d  f o r  t h e  p r i n c i p a l  h o u s i n g  u n i t .  L o c a l  r e g u l a t i o n s  m u s t  p e r m i t  A D U s  t o  b e  a t t a c h e d ,  d e t a c h e d  o r  a  

c o m b i n a t i o n  o f  b o t h  t y p e s .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  a  c o n v e r s i o n  o f  a n  e x i s t i n g  s t r u c t u r e ,  s u c h  a s  a  d e t a c h e d  g a r a g e ,  m u s t  b e  a l l o w e d .

•M a x i m u m  A D U  s i z e  s t a n d a r d :  L o c a l  g o v e r n m e n t s  m a y  n o t  r e q u i r e  A D U s  t o  b e  s m a l l e r  t h a n  1 , 0 0 0  g r o s s  s q u a r e  f e e t  i n  s i z e .

•D i m e n s i o n a l  s t a n d a r d s :  A  l o c a l  g o v e r n m e n t  m a y  n o t  i m p o s e  s e t b a c k  r e q u i r e m e n t s ,  y a r d  c o v e r a g e  l i m i t s ,  t r e e  r e t e n t i o n  m a n d a t e s ,  o r  

r e s t r i c t i o n s  o n  e n t r y  d o o r  l o c a t i o n  t h a t  a r e  m o r e  r e s t r i c t i v e  t h a n  t h o s e  r e q u i r e d  f o r  t h e  p r i n c i p a l  u n i t .

•S t r e e t  i m p r o v e m e n t s :  A  l o c a l  g o v e r n m e n t  m a y  n o t  r e q u i r e  s t r e e t  i m p r o v e m e n t s  a s  a  c o n d i t i o n  o f  p e r m i t t i n g  a c c e s s o r y  d w e l l i n g  u n i t s .

•O w n e r  o c c u p a n c y :  A  l o c a l  g o v e r n m e n t  m a y  n o t  r e q u i r e  o w n e r  o c c u p a n c y  f o r  a  p r i n c i p a l  u n i t  o r  A D U s .

•C o n d o m i n i u m  s a l e s :  L o c a l  g o v e r n m e n t s  m a y  n o t  p r o h i b i t  t h e  s a l e  o r  o t h e r  c o n v e y a n c e  o f  a  c o n d o m i n i u m  u n i t  i n d e p e n d e n t l y  o f  a  p r i n c i p a l  u n i t  

s o l e l y  o n  t h e  g r o u n d s  t h a t  t h e  c o n d o m i n i u m  u n i t  w a s  o r i g i n a l l y  b u i l t  a s  a n  A D U .

2024ADUs – City of Carnation  

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.680
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.681


ADUs in Washington State - Continued

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 5

•D e s i g n  r e v i e w :  L o c a l  g o v e r n m e n t s  m ay  n o t  i m p o s e  a e s t h et i c  s t a n d a rd s  o r  r e q u i re m e n t s  f o r  d e s i g n  r e v i e w  t h a t  a r e  m o r e  

r e s t r i c t i ve  f o r  A D U s  t h a n  t h o s e  f o r  p r i n c i p a l  u n i t s .

•R e q u i r e d  p a r k i n g :  T h e re  a r e  r e s t r i c t i o n s  o n  h o w  m u c h  o n - s i t e  p a r k i n g  c a n  b e  r e q u i re d ,  w i t h  a  s l i d i n g  s c a l e  f o r  s m a l l e r - s i ze d  

l o t s .  N o  o n - s i t e  p a r k i n g  s t a n d a rd s  m ay  b e  a p p l i e d  t o  A D U s  l o c a t e d  w i t h i n  a  h a l f - m i l e  o f  a  m a j o r  t ra n s i t  s t o p .

•I m p a c t  f e e s :  I m p a c t  f e e s  f o r  A D U s  a r e  l i m i t e d  t o  n o  m o r e  t h a n  5 0 %  o f  t h o s e  a s s e s s e d  t o  t h e  p r i n c i p a l  h o u s i n g  u n i t .

•C o m m o n  I n t e r e st  C o m m u n i t i e s :  N e w  “ C o m m o n  I n t e re s t  C o m m u n i t i e s ”  ( f o r  e xa m p l e ,  a  n e w  s u b d i v i s i o n  w i t h  a  h o m e o w n e rs  

a s s o c i a t i o n )  a r e  p ro h i b i t e d  f ro m  a d o p t i n g  c o v e n a n t s ,  c o n d i t i o n s ,  a n d  r e s t r i c t i o n s  ( c o m m o n l y  c a l l e d “ C C & R s ” )  t h a t  w o u l d  l i m i t  

t h e  c o n s t r u c t i o n  o f  A D U s  o n  a n y  l o t .  E x i s t i n g  C C & R s ,  h o w e v e r,  a r e  n o t  i m p a c t e d  b y  t h e  n e w  l a w  a n d  m ay  r e m a i n  i n  e f f e c t .

The City of Carnation’s Planning Department is  currently reviewing these requirements 

and working to update CMC to comply by June 2025.



Housing Action Plan
The City of Carnation’s Housing Action Plan was 
accepted in June of 2023. 

S T R A T E G Y  1  – E N C O U R A G E  A  W I D E  
V A R I E T Y  O F  H O U S I N G  T Y P E S

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 6

Making it easier to build ADUs is consistent with 
Strategy 1 of the Plan:



How Do You Make it Easier to Build ADUs?

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 7

Overall, make it cost less and take less time to build an ADU. The main costs 
associated with building an ADU are:

• Impact fees – Transportation and Park (School impact fees are at the school 
district’s discretion)

• Design fees – architecture, site plan, engineering, etc.

• Permit fees

• Util ity connection fees (ONLY applies if they want a new connection)



Impact Fees
T H E  C I T Y  O F  C A R N A T I O N  A L R E A D Y  
O F F E R S  A  D I S C O U N T  O N  I M P A C T  F E E S  
F O R  A D U S .

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 8



Design & 
Permitting Fees
S E V E R A L  C I T I E S  H A V E  D E V E L O P E D  
P E R M I T  R E A D Y  A D U P R O G R A M S  
( P R A D U )  T O  R E D U C E  A P P L I C A N T ’ S  
C O S T  &  T I M E  F O R  P E R M I T T I N G

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 9

Examples include but are not limited to:
• Seattle 
• Renton
• Kirkland
• Leavenworth
• Lacey
• Olympia
• Port Angeles



How does 
Carnation 
develop a PRADU 
program?

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 10



The way to get started is to quit talking 
and begin doing.
- W A L T  D I S N E Y

Option 1

Hire an architect to develop 
permit ready ADU plans that 
the City owns. These can be 

provided to applicant 
residents for free or low 

cost.

Option 2

Approve plans that architects 
submit to the City. Residents 

can “lease” by paying a 
royalty fee and work directly 

with the architect for 
modif ications, etc.

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 11



Hiring An Architect
P R O S  A N D  C O N S

Pro: City of 
Carnation owns the 

plans and can 
decide what the 

applicant pays (free 
or low cost)

Con: Cost is 
$35,000+ to 

develop plans. An 
architect and 

engineer need to be 
contracted.

Con: When 
building, f ire 

and /or energy 
codes are updated 
the plans need to 
be updated. City 

would need to pay 
for updates.

Challenge: 
Applicant sti l l  

needs to develop 
their site plan and 

needs technical 
assistance.

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 12

P r o :  R e d u c e s  
t i m e f r a m e s  /  
n o  p l a n  r e v i e w  
r e q u i r e d



Pre-Approving Plans
P R O S  A N D  C O N S

Pro: Lower cost 
commitment for 

the City.

Con: Higher cost 
for applicant 

(royalty fee + 
modif ication fees)

Con: City doesn’t 
own the 

plans /less control. 
Architect may 
decide to no 

longer participate.

Pro: More plans 
can potentially be 

offered. Can 
collaborate with 

other cities.

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 13

Challenge: Getting 
architects to 
participate



Other Options
T O  M A K E  I T  E A S I E R  T O  B U I L D  A D U S

City doesn’t offer 
PRADUs but...

Reduces all 
permitting costs 
(right now only 
impact fees are 
discounted) OR

City offers free 
ADU planning 
workshops to 

assist potential 
applicants OR 

City offers up to a 
certain amount of 

free technical 
assistance for 

applicants

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 14



Approximate Timelines

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 15

Hire An 
Architect

3-4 months to 
interview, hire, 
develop and 
design

Pre-Approve 
Plans

3-6 months to 
promote and 
attract 
designers to 
of fer their 
plans

Reduce All  
ADU Fees

2-4 weeks to 
update fee 
schedule

Offer 
Workshop

3 months to 
assemble 
speakers, plan 
and promote a 
workshop.

Free 
Assistance

Can implement 
immediately / 
need to 
promote



Summary

Implementing an ADU program in Carnation has 
many benefits including: 

• Helping to meet GMA housing targets 

• Diversifying housing types 

• Increasing affordable rentals and/or lodging 

• Making it a more affordable option for applicant 
residents

ADUs – City of Carnation  2024 16



 

 

Planning and Parks Board 
On-Boarding Resources & Materials 

 
 
Purpose: Planning and Parks Board members are appointed by the elected body 
to represent the broad interests of the community. They serve as a sounding 
board for new ideas, promote community interest in planning, and provide 
leadership in citizen participation programs. Planning and Parks Board Members 
make recommendations to elected officials. 
 
New to the Planning Commission FAQ’s: 
(Note: not all of the information applies) 
https://deptofcommerce.app.box.com/s/7mh64agj1krlzjf1rbzdow634vuvzouc 
 
Effective Meetings for Appointed and Elected Officials: 
https://deptofcommerce.app.box.com/s/jhf40iofp12jw6rlhslr6tl0rmo8612s 
 
Comprehensive Planning Basics (10-minute video): 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KwdDxJNVv2E 
 
Open Public Meetings Act (27-minute video): 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2YzyuOWmPrU 
 
Additional resources can be found here: 
https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-
management/short-course/ 
 
Note: Planning and Parks Board Members are subject to the Public Records Act. 
More information can be found here: https://mrsc.org/explore-
topics/legal/open-government/public-records-act/public-records-act-basics 
 

 

 

  

https://deptofcommerce.app.box.com/s/7mh64agj1krlzjf1rbzdow634vuvzouc
https://deptofcommerce.app.box.com/s/jhf40iofp12jw6rlhslr6tl0rmo8612s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KwdDxJNVv2E
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2YzyuOWmPrU
https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/short-course/
https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/short-course/
https://mrsc.org/explore-topics/legal/open-government/public-records-act/public-records-act-basics
https://mrsc.org/explore-topics/legal/open-government/public-records-act/public-records-act-basics

	Agenda 01-23-24
	MIN 11-14-23
	ADU 2024
	ADUs
	What is an ADU?
	ADU Types
	ADUs in Washington State: Required Code Changes
	ADUs in Washington State - Continued
	Housing Action Plan��The City of Carnation’s Housing Action Plan was accepted in June of 2023. 
	How Do You Make it Easier to Build ADUs?
	Impact Fees
	Design & Permitting Fees
	How does Carnation develop a PRADU program?	
	The way to get started is to quit talking and begin doing.
	Hiring An Architect
	Pre-Approving Plans
	Other Options
	Approximate Timelines
	Summary

	onboarding for parks and planning

